
HAMPDEN TOWN COUNCIL 

GOALS AND PRIORITIES SESSION  

HAMPDEN MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 
AGENDA 

 
Saturday, February 10, 2018                                              

 
8:15 AM 

   

 
 

8:00  Gathering / Coffee / Social 
 

8:15  Call to Order 
 

8:15  Discussion of Expectations for Meeting 
 

8:30 Presentation of Operational and Budget Trends; Status of Work Items in 
Current Work Plan; Council Committee policy items – Town Manager 
Angus Jennings 

 

8:50  Overview of Departments’ Operations, Successes and Challenges 
  Discussion with Staff of Challenges and Opportunities for FY19 
 

10:00  Council and Manager discussion of operational and financial (budget)  
goals and priorities for FY19 

   
Adjourn 

 
 
 
 
NOTE: The Council will take a 30-minute recess at noon. 



  
 
TO:  Town Council 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

DATE:  February 8, 2018 

RE:  FY19 Goals Setting, Outcomes and Next Steps 
 

 

In preparation for this year’s Goal Setting meeting, I have categorized various initiatives 
in the attached “Vital / Important / Optional / Not Priority” matrix, organized by 
Committee. The first column includes items that are underway and are expected to 
continue for the remainder of FY18. The second column proposes items for 
consideration as FY19 prioritized goals. 
 
These DRAFT sheets are attached. Earlier drafts of these sheets were shared with 
each Committee Chair and with Mayor McPike, and were also circulated among 
Department Heads for input. However, these sheets do not necessarily reflect each 
Chair’s priorities for their respective Committees. (A couple of items – such as related to 
potential additional trails on public land – have also been included based on citizen 
suggestions that have not yet been formally considered by a Committee). At Saturday’s 
session, I would like the Council to refine these goals to the point where they can be 
relied upon as accurate statements of each Committees’ priorities for FY19. 
 
In support of the Councilors’ preparations, I have also enclosed a detailed list of each 
Committee’s work from the past 2 ½ years, based on a review of agenda items. 
 
In reviewing this information, it is evident (to me) that the Town’s progress on certain 
higher-priority items has been compromised, to some extent, by the broad scope of 
issues that the Committees have addressed. More issues translates to less available 
personnel time toward each issue. Therefore, I will again urge that the Council, in 
setting priorities for what it does want to get done during FY19, also make an effort to 
identify items that it acknowledges will not get done next year.  
 
This work will assist in preparing the FY19 Budget, but will also assist with the transition 
to a new Town Manager. Although I will not be here in FY19, I will be working with 
Department Heads to prepare a budget designed to address the priorities that come out 
of Saturday’s session. This will include updating the Town Manager Project 
Management Matrix with the endorsed Council Goals. Because that Matrix takes into 
account which Departments will be responsible for which goals, this should assist in 
evaluating whether resources are available to advance the Council’s overall goals.  
 
 

Town of Hampden 
106 Western Avenue 
Hampden, Maine 04444 
 

 

Phone: (207) 862-3034 
Fax:   (207) 862-5067 
Email: 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov 

 



 

 

Infrastructure 

Administration 

Planning /

Economic Dev 

Land/Bldg Svcs Public 

Safety 

Public 

Works 
Recreation Pool Library 

Fire 

Police 

Code       

Enforcement 

Organizational 
Chart 

Finance 
Town Council 

Committees 

Assessing 

Planning & Development 

Voters 

Services 

Town Manager /  

Treasurer / Deputy GA 

Accounting / Finance / 

Human Resources 

Tax Collector / Dep. 

Clerk / Gen. Assistance / 

BMV Agent / Counter2 

Town Clerk / Registrar 

of Voters / Dep. Tax 

Collector / Counter3 

Highways 

Solid 

Waste 

Appointed Boards, Commissions & Committees 
Board of Assessment Review 

Board of Registration 

Board of Zoning Appeals 

Environmental Trust Committee 

(Harbor Committee—inactive) 

Historic Preservation Commission 

Library Board of Trustees 

Personnel Appeals Board 

Planning Board 

Pool Board of Trustees 

Recreation Committee 

Town Council 

Animal  

Control 
Appointed by Town Manager 

Cemetery Sexton 

Addressing Officer (E911) 

Town Forester 

Health Officer 

Sewer 

Bldgs & 

Grounds 

GIS/IT / Stormwater 

Administrative / 

Records (Code /

Permitting, Sewer 

Billing) 

Harbor 

Master 

5 4 23 3 2 3 

1 

Admin 

Administrative / 

(DPW / Ambu-

lance) 

Office Clerk / Counter1 / 

Dep. Clerk for Vital Rec-

ords 

Last updated 2/8/18 # = FTEs 

14 

Office Clerk / Counter1 / 

Dep. Clerk for Vital Rec-

ords / Backup BMV 

Agent  





Close out FY17 Audit
FY19 Budget
FY19 Sewer Budget
FY19-23 Capital Program with short-, 

mid- and long-term investment 
priorities, and funding sources and 
uses, for public facilities, infrastructure, 
and vehicles & equipment

Monthly bank reconciliations
Implement revised contracts for hauling 

and processing of solid waste
Begin setting aside reserve funds for 

future town-wide revaluation
Resolve developers' escrow accounts (20

accounts over 10+ years totaling 
$79,817)

Reorganize and reassign some financial 
management responsibilities

Improved Department of Labor 
Compliance (trainings, documentation)

Complete transition to Bangor Payroll
Establish protocols and staff 

responsibilities relative to sale of 
Business Park lots

Send up to two Hampden Highlights
newsletters regarding various issues, 
incl. June referendum

File two outstanding bond closeout forms 
with MBBB (from 2010, 2014)

Accept online payments (in addition to 
Rec/Pool) by credit/debit card

Library - provide for credit / debit card 
payments

Inclement weather policy
Re-do and simplify Chart of Accounts in 

TRIO

Support civic organizations such as 
through Volunteer Open House and 
Community Forum

Present (FY18) Future (FY19) and on

A

B

C

D

Vital

Important

Optional

Not Priority Prioritization Matrix © FranklinCovey Products, LLC

MANAGER INITIATIVES (OR RESPONSIBILITIES)
Prioritized Goals



Coldbrook Corners TIF District
Amend Business Park Covenants, Zoning
Amend Business Park subdivision plan
Zoning – Article 3 and related sections 

(Uses, Dimensions, Site Plan Review, 
Definitions etc.)

Shoreland zoning text amendments
Shoreland zoning map amendments
Recreational Marijuana (if State 

establishes policy)
Budgeting TIF funds for FY19

Marijuana (recreational) - establish 
policies regarding land use/zoning and 
local licensing and inspections 
requirements (if not complete in FY18)

Town Center planning, and zoning 
ordinance and map amendments to 
facilitate private property investment 
(cont’d)

Business Park marketing materials
Town Center planning, and zoning 

ordinance and map amendments to 
facilitate private property investment

Down East Hampden-Bangor profile

Create Applicants’ Guide Book (for Site 
Plan, Subdivision, Code Enf., etc.)

Zoning – Housekeeping 
Zoning – Earth Removal
Establish coordinated public/private 

vision for Route 1A and riverfront north 
from Marina Park; amend zoning

Revise Subdivision Ordinance to update 
design & construction standards

Environmental testing along waterfront 
for potential future redevelopment

Loan guarantee program (TIF funded) for 
property improvements (building 
renovations only, or also new 
construction?) within designated 
priority location(s)

Research and draft impact fees ordinance 
(and build in as funding source in 
Capital Program)

Recodification

Present (FY18) Future (FY19) and on

A

B

C

D

Vital

Important

Optional

Not Priority

Prioritization Matrix © FranklinCovey Products, LLC

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Prioritized Goals



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Planning & Development FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

P&D Committee

J
u
l-
1
5

J
u
l-
1
5

A
u
g
-1

5

A
u
g
-1

5

S
e
p
-1

5

S
e
p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o
v
-1

5

N
o
v
-1

5

D
e
c
-1

5

D
e
c
-1

5

J
a
n
-1

6

F
e
b
-1

6

F
e
b
-1

6

M
a
r-

1
6

M
a
r-

1
6

A
p
r-

1
6

A
p
r-

1
6

M
a
y
-1

6

M
a
y
-1

6

J
u
n
-1

6

J
u
n
-1

6

J
u
l-
1
6

J
u
l-
1
6

A
u
g
-1

6

A
u
g
-1

6

S
e
p
-1

6

S
e
p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o
v
-1

6

N
o
v
-1

6

D
e
c
-1

6

D
e
c
-1

6

J
a
n
-1

7

J
a
n
-1

7

F
e
b
-1

7

M
a
r-

1
7

A
p
r-

1
7

A
p
r-

1
7

M
a
y
-1

7

M
a
y
-1

7

J
u
n
-1

7

J
u
l-
1
7

A
u
g
-1

7

A
u
g
-1

7

S
e
p
-1

7

S
e
p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o
v
-1

7

N
o
v
-1

7

D
e
c
-1

7

D
e
c
-1

7

Accessory Apartment Ordinance x x x x

Bangor Chamber of Commerce x

BETE/BETR x

Building Height definition x

Building permit threshold (zoning) x

Business Friendly Certification x

Business Loan Program x

Business Park Covenants x x x

Business Park development agreement x x x

Business Park marketing (Epstein) x x

Business Park TIF x x x x x x x x x

Citizen's Climate Lobby resolution x

Code Enforcement Update x x x

Codification of ordinances x x x x x x x x x

Coldbrook Corners development / TIF x x x x x x

Colonial Heights Conservation Easement x x x

Dangerous Building (758 M.R.N.) x x

Dewey Street zoning x

Economic Development advertising x x

Emera TIF x

Environmental Mitigation Guidelines x

Environmental Trust x

Fees Ordinance x x

Fiberight - MRC Joinder Agreement x x

Fiberight (permitting, development) x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x

Filling and Grading Ordinance x

Flag Lots x x

Flexibility in Parking and Signage Requirements x

Good Neighbor Ordinance x

Grant opportunity, waterfront planning x

Hampden Business Association x

Harbor Ordinance x x

Home Occupation Ordinance x x x x x x x x x

Impact Fee Ordinance x

Landfill Post Closure Monitoring x

Marina Signage on Route 1A x x x x x x x x x x x

Market Study x x x x x x

Medicinal Marijuana local review limitations x

Mineral Extraction Ordinance x x

MRC x x x

MRC request for water cost contribution x

MRC request to hold Conservation Easement x

MRC road design x

MRC/Fiberight sewer design x

MUBEC x

Natural Gas Study (Business Park) x x

Open Space in Subdivisions x x

PERC MSW proposal x x

Planning Board zoning review process / Ordinance 

Committee
x x x x x x x

Planning Department staffing x x x

Planning/Econ Dev reorganization x

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 1 of 2 2/8/2018



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Planning & Development FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

P&D Committee

J
u
l-
1
5

J
u
l-
1
5

A
u
g
-1

5

A
u
g
-1

5

S
e
p
-1

5

S
e
p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o
v
-1

5

N
o
v
-1

5

D
e
c
-1

5

D
e
c
-1

5

J
a
n
-1

6

F
e
b
-1

6

F
e
b
-1

6

M
a
r-

1
6

M
a
r-

1
6

A
p
r-

1
6

A
p
r-

1
6

M
a
y
-1

6

M
a
y
-1

6

J
u
n
-1

6

J
u
n
-1

6

J
u
l-
1
6

J
u
l-
1
6

A
u
g
-1

6

A
u
g
-1

6

S
e
p
-1

6

S
e
p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o
v
-1

6

N
o
v
-1

6

D
e
c
-1

6

D
e
c
-1

6

J
a
n
-1

7

J
a
n
-1

7

F
e
b
-1

7

M
a
r-

1
7

A
p
r-

1
7

A
p
r-

1
7

M
a
y
-1

7

M
a
y
-1

7

J
u
n
-1

7

J
u
l-
1
7

A
u
g
-1

7

A
u
g
-1

7

S
e
p
-1

7

S
e
p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o
v
-1

7

N
o
v
-1

7

D
e
c
-1

7

D
e
c
-1

7

Private Ways (Subdivision) x x x x x x x x x x

Property Maintenance Ordinance x x

Recreational Marijuana policy x x x x x x x x x x

RSU-22 Building Comm (McGraw Weatherbee) x x x

Shoreland Zoning Ordinance x x x

Sign Ordinance x

Solarize Bangor x

Solid Waste Flow Control Ordinance x

Stormwater 101 x

Streetlight petition (Chickadee) x

Subdivision Ordinance x

TIF policy x x x

Town Center plan and zoning x x x x x

Work plan / priorities x x

Yard Sale Ordinance x x x

Zoning Certificate of Compliance x

Zoning definitions, Transfer Station x

Zoning Dimensional Table x

Zoning District boundaries, uses x

Zoning map amendment x x

Zoning Use Table x x

Note: All Planning & Development Committee meeting agendas, minutes and packets online

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/planningdevelopment

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 2 of 2 2/8/2018



Lura Hoit Pool site engineering; initiate 
DEP permitting

Determine whether Town will continue to 
pay O&M costs for Kiwanis Civic Center 
in FY19, and if so from Host Community 
Benefits or build into operating budget

Establish facilities operations and 
maintenance plan for public 
recreational facilities, including library, 
in coordination with partnering user 
groups and taxpayers

Recreational Facilities Planning; decide 
whether or not to extend Skehan
Center lease and on what term and 
subject to what conditions, and update 
Capital Program

Evaluate long-term planning for Library 
(i.e. current or alternate facility)

Continued and enhanced recognition of 
and support for local civic and 
volunteer individuals and organizations

Revisit policy regarding allowing hunting 
on certain Town-owned land

Recreation Affiliated Programs - clarify 
terms of agreements incl. cost sharing

Next steps toward enhancing broadband 
availability (if any)

Veterans’ Honor Roll – protocols and 
responsibilities (with VFW)

Improve visibility of Papermill Park with 
signage on Coldbrook Road

Possible Bog Road acquisition of public 
rights to Souadabscook

Public Parks – pursue grant-funded 
improvements as available

Review/Amend Harbor Ordinance
Work with civic organizations, residents 

and businesses to create Community 
Resource Guide

Clarify Outdoor Facilities Ordinance (incl. 
whether Rules & Regulations were 
adopted/are needed)

Execute new Cable Franchise Agreement 
Create comprehensive walking trails map
Community Garden at 46 Canaan Rd?
Multi-use trails on public land, and/or

creation of a Town Forest?

Present (FY18) Future (FY19) and on

A

B

C

D

Vital

Important

Optional

Not Priority
Prioritization Matrix © FranklinCovey Products, LLC

SERVICES COMMITTEE
Prioritized Goals



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Services FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Services Committee

J
u
l-
1
5

A
u
g
-1

5

S
e
p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o
v
-1

5

D
e
c
-1

5

J
a
n
-1

6

F
e
b
-1

6

M
a
r-

1
6

A
p
r-

1
6

M
a
y
-1

6

J
u
n
-1

6

J
u
l-
1
6

A
u
g
-1

6

S
e
p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o
v
-1

6

D
e
c
-1

6

J
a
n
-1

7

F
e
b
-1

7

M
a
r-

1
7

A
p
r-

1
7

M
a
y
-1

7

J
u
n
-1

7

J
u
l-
1
7

A
u
g
-1

7

S
e
p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o
v
-1

7

D
e
c
-1

7

Bog Road site x x

Broadband grant x x x x x x x x x x

Cable Franchise Agreement x x x x

Cable TV A/V upgrade x

Children's Day x x x x x x

Conservation Commission x

Conservation/Rec Account x x

Eagle Scout project(s) x

Eel research, Papermill Park x

Enterprise budgeting x

Farmers Market x x x

Flags in Town Center x

Gateway Seniors Without Walls x

Good Neighbor/Telecare x x

Historic District review x

Hunting on Town Owned Land x

Kiwanis Civic Center x x x x

Libraries - comparative spending on books x

Library Ordinance x

Marina Park x x

Online registration, Rec and Pool x

Prohibit Vaping in town parks x

Public Safety Advisory Committee x x

Public Safety 5-Year Plan x

Rec Affiliated Agreements x x x x x

Rec Dept Scholarship Fund x

Recreation fields incl. Pool site x x x x x x x x x x x x

Recreation Plan x

"Safe Zone" designation x

Sewer Ordinance x

Skehan Center lease x x x x x x

Soccer camp x x x

The Bus x x x x x x x

Timber Harvesting, LL Bean parcel x

Town Atty selection x

Town Center crosswalks x

Transfer Station Rules & Regs x

Tree Board x

Volunteer Open House, Community Forum x x x x x

Website refresh x x

Note: All Services Committee meeting agendas, minutes and packets online

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/services

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 1 of 1 2/8/2018



Complete Capital Program FY18-23
Address Town Bldg mold situation, incl. 

duct cleaning, public safety floors
Review sewer rates within FY19 budget 

process
Design, procurement, construction of 

new Salt Shed
Include insert in April sewer bill regarding 

proposed June referendum
Complete GIS mapping of sewer system 

with sub-meter accuracy – necessary
for MDOT projects

Route 1A reconstruction est. 2019-20, 
Mountainview to Western Ave., 
including new sidewalk

Physical repairs to resolve drainage
problems on Schoolhouse Lane (if not 
already complete)

Sidewalk on Western Ave. to complete 
“Four Mile Square,” MDOT approval, 
construction 

Evaluate suitability of current DPW 
departmental structure and staffing to 
meet Town’s needs; including 
evaluating potential to outsource 
additional functions

Physical repairs to resolve drainage
problems on Schoolhouse Lane

Continue to pursue MDOT support for 
repairs/upgrades to signal at 
1A/Western Ave

Secure personnel training and licensing 
(Class 2 licenses)

Seek bids for mowing and basic grounds 
maintenance for 2018

MS4 5 year permit - investigate need for 
Stormwater utility fee

Public informational meeting regarding 
Pine Tree Landfill Post Closure

Modify Sewer Ordinance to require 
acceptance of deeds when new sewer 
lines are accepted; work on backlog of 
obtaining deeds for existing sewer lines

Plan for potential Urban Compact 
designation and responsibilities

Evaluate potential changes to 
management of Solid Waste (i.e. 
Transfer Station operations and layout, 
level of service, etc.)

Pursue Grant Funding for Sewer 
Inflow/Infiltration

Pursue Grant Eligibility for Sewer – USDA 
Rural Development

More LED lighting at Municipal Building 
Watershed planning – separate 

stormwater plans for Shaw Brook and 
Sucker Brook to ensure continued DEP 
compliance

Evaluate potential transition to LED 
streetlights to reduce electrical costs, 
enhance quality

Present (FY18) Future (FY19) and on

A

B

C

D

Vital

Important

Optional

Not Priority Prioritization Matrix © FranklinCovey Products, LLC

INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE
Prioritized Goals



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Infrastructure FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Infrastructure Committee

J
u

l-
1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o

v
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

J
a

n
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

Ammo Park sewer x x x x

Capital Program x x x x x

Cemetery Ordinance x x

Class 2 licenses for DPW personnel x

CSO Master Plan, grant application x x

Driveway/culvert policy x x x x

Eagle Scout project(s) x

Employee use of Town vehicles x

Environmental Trust x x x

GPS units in DPW vehicles x x x x

Grant applications x x x

Grist Mill Bridge reconstruction x

Kiwanis building x

LED Street Lights x x x x x x x x

Legislation (proposed by State) x

Library LED lighting upgrade x

Marina Park x x

MDOT Urban Compact x

Mobile food vendor policy x

MRC/Fiberight x x x x x x x

MS4 stormwater x x x x x

Muni Bldg HVAC x x x x

Old County culvert x x

Parking at Lura Hoit site x

Pine Tree Landfill post closure monitoring x x x x x x x x x x

Proposed State legislation x x x

Public Safety Training Room policy x x

Rain Garden x

Reserve request (bldg maint.) x x x x

Route 1A reconstruction x x x x

RSU-22 McGraw-Weatherbee x

Salt Shed replacement x x

Schoolhouse Lane x x

Sewer Ordinance x x x x x x

Sewer rates (incl. financial updates) x x x x x x x x x x x x

Sewer (other) x

Sewer meter pit (Bangor line) x

Skehan Center plow bids x

Solarize Bangor x

Solid Waste Flow Control Ordinance x

Street light petitions x x x

Note: All Infrastructure Committee meeting agendas, minutes and packets online

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/infrastructure

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 1 of 1 2/8/2018



Determine borrowing needs for sewer 
repairs identified by CCTV etc.; secure 
voter authorization at June referendum

Negotiate, execute new Police contract
Negotiate, execute new Fire contract
Foreclosures (if any)
Service Charge litigation

Bond Issue for Route 1A project 
(authorization received; ant. Fall 2019; 
secure and oversee bond issue)

Bond Issues for sewer projects (upon 
authorization; ant. Summer 2019; 
secure and oversee bond issues)

Health insurance review and re-bid
Proposed renegotiation of Emera TIF

Maintain Fund Balance in 10-12% range 
to eliminate need for tax anticipation 
borrowing

Update Personnel Ordinance and Policies, 
incl. re trainings, DOL compliance

With Winterport, Newburgh and 
Frankfort, engage in budget and capital 
planning with RSU-22

Retirement funding strategy for long-
term unfunded liabilities

Strategic planning for Environmental 
Trust as long-term resource

Evaluate use and potential disposition of 
Town-owned properties

Solicit public and personnel input on 
potential change to 5-day schedule at 
Town Office

Evaluate potential for solar installations 
on Town buildings and/or properties

Amend Town Charter incl. to bring 
ordinance amendment process in line 
with statute to streamline current 
process

Present (FY18) Future (FY19) and on

A

B

C

D

Vital

Important

Optional

Not Priority

Prioritization Matrix © FranklinCovey Products, LLC

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Prioritized Goals



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Finance & Administration FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Finance Committee

J
u

l-
1

5

J
u

l-
1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o

v
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

J
a

n
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o

v
-1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o

v
-1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

2016 TAN Award Recommendations x

A/V equipment upgrade x

Ambulance Abatements x x x

Ambulance purchase x

Amend Approved FY17 Budget - From Overlay to restore 

funding Fire/Public Safety
x

Boiler Repair x

Bond Docs for overdue Sewer Costs x

Budget Adjustment - Overlay to Municipal Bldg Resrv x

Budget Adjustment - Personnel Resrv Fund for TS 

Compactor Repair
x

Budget Adjustment - TIF CEA Payments x x

Budget Adjustment - Video Streaming x

Business Park TIF professional fee reimbursement x

Candidates' Forum for 2017 x

Cemetery Resrv Funds - Grub Prevention x

Cemetery Resrv Funds - Locus Grove fence repair x x

Census invitation for 2020 x x

Committee Prioritites for FY18 x

Confined Space Entry Policy x

Conservation Easement Holder designation for 

Constitution Ave
x x x

Conservation/Rec Acct. - Fund projects x

Conservation/Rec Acct. Funding x

Contract Award for 2017 Pool Interior Paint x

Contract Award for 2017 PW Metal Roof Rehab x

Contract Award for CCTV and Cleaning of Sanitary and 

Stor Sewer Systems Biad
x

Contract Award for PW Plow/Dump Truck - Replaces #13 x

Contract Award for PW Plow/Dump Truck - Replaces #20 x

Contract Award for Snow Removal/Salting for the Skehan 

Center
x x

Contract Award for the 2017 Pond Rd chip seal RFP x

Contract Awards for the 2017 Paving program RFP x

Council Code of Ethics x x

Council Meeting Schedule for October/November x x

Council Meeting Schedule for September/November x x x x x x x x

Council Rules x

Dangerous Bldg Order x x

DEP/Chevron Consent Decree x x

Dept. of Ed notice and calc for funding RSU22 x

Dept. of Ed.state 2017-2018 buget and effect on ED279s x x

District Budget Mtg 6/8/17 discussion x

Driveway/Entrance Culvert Policy x

Eaton Peabody as Bond Council x

Econ. Dev. Resrv - Purdhase Town Flags x

Emera TIF Funds - Economic Market Study x
Emera TIF Funds - Town Center Lights x
Environment Trust - Storm Water Management x x
Environment Trust Principal and Income x
Environmental Trust - Drumlin, LLC x

Environmental Trust - Landfill post closure monitoring 

expenses
x

Establish Summer schedule for Council and Committees x x

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 1 of 5 2/8/2018



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Finance & Administration FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Finance Committee

J
u

l-
1

5

J
u

l-
1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o

v
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

J
a

n
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o

v
-1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o

v
-1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

Fees Ordinance x

Fire Bldg Resrv - Bay Door Exhaust x

Fire Fighters Grant - Matching Funds x

Fire Station Lease to RSU 22 - Sewer x

Foreclosed Properties Advertise x
Foreclosed Property - 118 Fowlers Landing x
Foreclosed Property - Map 1 Lot 56 x
FY16 Audit Presentation x x x

FY16 Close-Out x x

FY18 Budget Process x x

FY18 Proposed Budget x x

FY18 RSU 22 Budget x

FY18 RSU 22 Budget - disapproval x

GIS Reserve Funds to Stormwater Mapping x

Hampden Business Park - Auth to Sell x x

Hampden Kiwanis Club Lease x

Harbor Master - Peter Neal x

Historic District Ordinance x

Host Comm. Benefit - for Childrens Day Insurance. x x

Host Comm. Benefit - for Senior Yellow Pages x

Host Comm. Benefit - Taking over financial responsibility of 

the Kiwanis Civic Center FY18
x

HVAC System Quote x

Insurance Claim - Boiler x

Insurance Claim - Police Cruiser x

Insurance Claim - Trash Compactor Cylinder x
IS 402 ICS required Training x

IT Reserve - For Planner x

IT Reserve - GIS Trimble Unit x

IT Reserve - Laptop/Docking Station for Cruiser x

IT Reserve - Re: MyRec.com x

IT Reserve - Replace Town Office Server x

IT Reserve - Server Rack and Battery Backup x

IT Reserve - Surveillance System x

IT Reserve - Website Redesign x

James W. Wadman, CPA Firm Audit Services x

Land Use Reorg. 12 month review x

Landfill Post Closure Monitoring x

Law Change re: Sewer Commitments x

LD 1226 - Act to Keep Maine's Trans. Infrastructure Safe x

LD 1312 - A Resolve to Investigate Extending Rail Service x

LD 26 - Act to Lower Motor Veh Excise Tax x x

League of Women Voters for Candidate Forum x

Legalization of Recreational Marijuana x x x

Library Lighting and Electrial Work x

Library Reserv - Roof Repair x

Library Reserv - Squirrel Trapping x

License Plate Issuance Policy x

Managers Preview of FY17 Budget x

Marina Reserve Funds x

Marina Resrv Local Match for Submerged Lands Grant x

Matching Grant Resrv - Balistic Shield x x

Matching Grant Resrv - Counsultant costs x

Matching Grant Resrv - Portable LED Scene Lighting x x

Matching Grant Resrv - Rescue Equip. x
Matching Grant Resrv - SCBA Masks x
Meeting with RSU Towns and State Reps. x

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 2 of 5 2/8/2018



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Finance & Administration FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Finance Committee

J
u

l-
1

5

J
u

l-
1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o

v
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

J
a

n
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o

v
-1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o

v
-1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

Memo of Understanding with MRC and Fiberight x

Mil Rate Review x

MMA Delegate - Angus Jennings x

Mobile Food Vendors on Public Prop x x

Moratorium of forensic psychiatric facilities in Bangor x

MRC Board of Directors x

MRC Contribution towards Water line for Coldbrook Road x

MRC Joinder Agreement x

MRC Put Option for the sale of PERC interests x x

Municipal Bldf Resrv - Town Office HVAC repair x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - ADA Compliant door opener x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Admin Service Desk x x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Boiler Repair x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Elecrical Repairs x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Exterior Wall lighting to LED x x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Mold Remediation x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Monitor Heater - Muni Garage x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Monitor Heater - Town Office 

Storage Garage
x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Muni Bldg Elevator x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Office Lighting x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Repair Fire Bay Door x x x x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Storm Drain System - Public Safety x

Municipal Bldg Resrv - Town Office Roof Leak repairs x

Municipal Bldg Resrv for Fuel Bid x

Municipal Bldg Resrv for HVAC x

Municipal Bldg Resrv Replace Garage Door Opener - Fire 

Department
x x

Natural Gas Feasibility Study x

Old County Rd. Storm Drain Sliplining x x

Order #2017-04 - Land Swap w/ME Ground Developers x x x

Order #2017-05 - Bid Procedure Guildelines x

Outdoor Facilites Ordinance - Vaping x x
Papermill Park - Weir install/eel research x x

Personal Property Tax Abatements x

Personnel Res Account Reimburse x

Personnel Res Acct. - Payroll Expenses x

Personnel Res Acct. - Temp Part-time worker x
Personnel Res Acct. - Town Staff - Outsource Payroll x

Personnel Res Acct. - Unbudgeted Expenses x

Personnel Update - Town Clerk x

Planner Interview Process x

Planning & Comm. Dev Resrv - Consultant Support x

Planning Board Resrv - Interim contract Planning Services x

Police Cruiser Resrv - Ratify for Sept. 30, 2015 

expenditure
x

Police Cruiser Resrv - Vehicle Equip. x

Police Dept. Vehicle - Quirk Bid x

Police Union Contract x

Pool Board of Trustees fund to Pool Facility Resrv x

Pool Clearing Acct to Pool Facility Resrv x

Pool Resrv - Removal and new install of Shower x

Pool Site - Contract award for design, engineering and 

permitting
x x

Pool Site - Cutting, Stumping, Grinding x

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 3 of 5 2/8/2018



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Finance & Administration FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Finance Committee

J
u

l-
1

5

J
u

l-
1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o

v
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

J
a

n
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o

v
-1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o

v
-1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

Pool Site - DEP permitting x

Proposed FY17 Budget adjustment - From Overlay to 

Streets/Roads Reserve
x x

Proposed FY17 Budget Amendment to Sewer Revs and 

Overlay
x

Proposed ordinance to Authorize Borrowing Funds for 

Public Works
x

PW Equip. Resrv - 5 Lease Pmnts x

PW Equip. Resrv - Lease Excavator x
PW Equip. Resrv - Purch Plow Trk x
PW Equip. Resrv - Renting Excavator x x

PW Plow Truck Quote vs Bid x x

PW Vehicle Resrv - Purchase Plow/Dump truck x

Rain Garden Council goals x

Ratify prior expenditure MMA Emergency Vehicle 

Operation Course Equipment
x x

Rec and Pool to move to Expense Accounting x x

Rec Clearing Acct to Rec Area Resrv x

Recreation Area Reserv - Printing/Postage for Pool Site x

Recreation Fields x

Recreation Resrv - Advertising Pool Site Design x

Recreation Resrv - Contract for design, engineering and 

permitting
x x

Recreation Resrv - Survey Pool/Municipal Bldg Site x

Referendum November 8, 2016 x

Referral to public hearing a proposed ordinance 

authorizing trade-in and purchase of John Deere backhoe
x

Referral to Public Hearing Porposed Zoning Ordinance 

Amendment to Define Retail Marijuana
x

Referral to Public Hearing Zoning Map Amendment x

Replacement Cruiser Surplus Fund x

Reserve Acct Funds for Fire Dept Garage Door Opener x

Reserve Acct Funds for John Deere Mower x x

Reserve Acct Funds for vital records restoration x

Review of Rules of Prodedure under Robert's rules of 

Order for Motions to Consider
x

Review of Sample PILOT agreements x x

Reward 2016 Paving to Eaton Paving x

Road closure x x x x

RSU #22 Board of Directors x

RSU #22 proposed Feb. 2018 Referendum x

Sale of Surplus Vehicles x x

Selling of Sterling SL8500 Dump Truck x

Service Charge appeal by Acadia Hospital x x x

Service Charges FY17 x

Service Fees - Abatements x

Service Fees - Process for Collections x

Service Ordinance Fees x x

Setting the 2016/2017 Mil Rate x

Sewer Abatement - 3rd qrtr 29 Sunrise Lane x

Sewer Fund Status x x

Sewer system mapping x

Skehan Center Tax Assessment x

Snowmobile Reg Fees ($2000) to Goodwill Riders x

Solid Waste Resrv - DPW Salt Shed replacement x

Spirit of America Foundation Trubute x x x

State of Maine FY18-19 Biennial Gen Fund x x

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 4 of 5 2/8/2018



Hampden Town Council Agenda Items - Finance & Administration FY16, FY17, FY18 (first half)

Agenda Items: FY16, FY17, first half FY18

Finance Committee

J
u

l-
1

5

J
u

l-
1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

A
u

g
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

S
e

p
-1

5

O
c
t-

1
5

O
c
t-

1
5

N
o

v
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

D
e

c
-1

5

J
a

n
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

F
e

b
-1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

M
a

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

M
a

y
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

n
-1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

J
u

l-
1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

A
u

g
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

S
e

p
-1

6

O
c
t-

1
6

O
c
t-

1
6

N
o

v
-1

6

N
o

v
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

D
e

c
-1

6

J
a

n
-1

7

J
a

n
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

F
e

b
-1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

M
a

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

M
a

y
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

n
-1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

J
u

l-
1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

A
u

g
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

S
e

p
-1

7

O
c
t-

1
7

O
c
t-

1
7

N
o

v
-1

7

N
o

v
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

D
e

c
-1

7

Stormwater Mangement - Sidney Blvd Culvert x x

Street Light Petitions - Chickadee Lane and 411 Old 

County Road
x

Streets/Roads Reserve Funds x

Streets/Roads Resrv - Resurfacing x

Streets/Roads Resrv - Sidewalk/crosswalk x x

Tax Abatement Requests x

Tax Anticipation Note x x x

Tax Assessor Revaluation x x x x

Tax Club establishment for FY2018 x

Tax Collector report 2017-2018 collections x

Tax Exempt Revenue Obligation Bond x x

Tentative Election timeline for 11/7/2017 x

TIF Funds x

Town Attorney contract x

Town Audit x x x

Town Council Compensation Ordinance x

Town Manager - Angus Jennings 6 Month Review x

Town Manager's Financial Summary Report x

Town Office Financial Dept. - Staffing/contract Support x

Transfer Custody of Tax Lists x
Transfer Station Decal Issuance Policy x

Transfer Station Swap Shop x x

Tree Ordinance - Repeal x x x x x

Trustees of Hampden Environ. Trust Comm. x

Waive Bid Procedure - Marina dock x

Waive Bid Procedure for Mold Remediation x

Note: All Finance Committee meeting agendas, minutes and packets online

http://www.hampdenmaine.gov/fincomm 

T:\Gigi\Work for Angus\Council agenda items summary 5 of 5 2/8/2018



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 1 February 8, 2018 

 



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 2 February 8, 2018 

  



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 3 February 8, 2018 

 

  

Year-End Unassigned Fund Balance,  General Fund

FY

Unassigned 

Fund 

Balance

Fund Balance 

Drawn to 

Balance 

Budget

FY06 2,925,911$ 309,000$      

FY07 3,616,647$ 383,446$      

FY08 4,202,573$ 325,000$      

FY09 4,648,425$ 327,045$      

FY10 4,522,569$ 325,000$      

FY11 3,846,928$ 332,500$      

FY12 3,111,351$ 455,000$      

FY13 1,960,033$ 661,350$      

FY14 1,329,466$ 550,000$      

FY15 1,051,925$ 500,000$      

FY16 1,247,072$ 200,000$      

FY17 TBD -$             



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 4 February 8, 2018 

  



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 5 February 8, 2018 

  



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 6 February 8, 2018 

7.0%

53.7%

39.2%

Hampden Tax Expenses by Percent FY18

County Tax

Education $$ Taxes

Municipal $$ Taxes Net of Non-
Property Tax Revenues

  

Year
Education $$ 

Taxes

Percent 

change, 

year to 

year
FY09 5,024,922$      -0.1%

FY10 5,115,775$      1.8%

FY11 5,145,806$      0.6%

FY12 5,184,588$      0.8%

FY13 5,299,962$      2.2%

FY14 5,650,341$      6.6%

FY15 6,033,040$      6.8%

FY16 6,130,574$      1.6%

FY17 6,308,863$      2.9%

FY18 6,370,594$      1.0%

% Change, FY09-FY18 26.8%

Source: Hampden Municipal Tax 

Rate Calculation Forms



Miscellaneous finance charts for FY19 Goal Setting 

Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 7 February 8, 2018 

 



TOWN OF HAMPDEN
FY18 BUDGET

TOWN COUNCIL APPROVED
JUNE 19, 2017

ACCOUNT 

NUMBER
ACCOUNT NAME

APPROVED BUDGET 

FY17

APPROVED BUDGET 

FY18

Change from 

FY17 to FY18

Town Council Town Council

01-01 ADMINISTRATION 598,062$                  585,659$                  ($12,403)
01-02 GIS/IT 108,031$                  116,195$                  $8,164
01-03 COMMUNICATIONS 19,483$                    22,342$                    $2,859
01-05 TOWN COUNCIL 29,717$                    30,308$                    $591
01-10 MUNICIPAL BUILDING 95,561$                    103,579$                  $8,018
01-15 TAX COLLECTOR 7,350$                      7,932$                      $582
01-20 ELECTIONS 9,514$                      11,484$                    $1,970
01-25 PLANNING/ASSESSING 274,164$                  285,487$                  $11,323
01-30 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 2,250$                      3,500$                      $1,250
05-01 POLICE 1,014,039$              1,093,054$              $79,015
05-05 FIRE DEPARTMENT 959,605$                  1,147,215$              $187,610
05-10 PUBLIC SAFETY 195,877$                  202,783$                  $6,906
06-06 NON-DEPARTMENT UTILITIES 544,095$                  558,272$                  $14,177
10-01 PUBLIC WORKS 1,367,867$              1,645,626$              $277,759
10-05 MUNICIPAL GARAGE 34,090$                    50,085$                    $15,995
10-10 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 123,430$                  72,345$                    ($51,085)
15-10 SOLID WASTE 360,028$                  376,514$                  $16,486
20-01 RECREATION 137,083$                  192,761$                  $55,678

20-05 RECREATION - PROGRAMS1 -$                          192,459$                  $192,459

20-07 RECREATION - SKEHAN CENTER1 -$                          123,234$                  $123,234

20-10 DYER LIBRARY 250,008$                  249,267$                  ($741)

20-20 LURA HOIT POOL1 206,024$                  325,892$                  $119,868

20-25 MARINA -$                          350$                         $350
25-10 THE BUS 84,597$                    89,911$                    $5,314
30-10 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS 196,495$                  233,092$                  $36,597
38-10 OUTSIDE AGENCIES -$                          -$                          $0
40-10 GENERAL ASSISTANCE 6,000$                      7,000$                      $1,000
50-10 DEBT SERVICE 339,986$                  314,398$                  ($25,588)
67-10 TIF 158,512$                  319,573$                  $161,061

3-00-00 RESERVES 502,019$                  451,941$                  ($50,078)

GROSS MUNICIPAL BUDGET TOTAL 7,623,887$              8,812,257$              $1,188,370

LESS MUNICIPAL REVENUES 1 3,189,833$             4,165,194$             $975,361

= NET MUNICIPAL BUDGET AMOUNT 4,434,054$              4,647,063$              $213,009
RSU #22 TAXATION AMOUNT 6,308,863$              6,370,594$              $61,731

COUNTY TAXATION AMOUNT 792,558$                  834,723$                  $42,165

TOTAL TAXATION REQUIREMENT 11,535,475$            11,852,380$            $316,905

Copies of the FY18 Budget are available at the Hampden Town Office and at www.hampdenmaine.gov.

1  Note: Expenses for Pool, Recreation Programs and Skehan Center were included in FY17 budget in "quasi enterprise" 

accounts. They are included here as standard budgeted expenses, and the Recreation revenues have also been included 

in projected non-tax Municipal Revenues shown here.
As proposed the FY 2018 Budget results in an estimated tax rate of $TBD per thousand. The mil rate will be set in August 

2017 after all new valuation has been considered. 

M:\!Angus files\Budget\FY18 Budget\FY18 Budget workbook1 of 51 www.hampdenmaine.gov/budget



Approved FY18 Budget June 19, 2017

Hampden Approved FY18 Budget - RESERVES
Allocations to Reserve Funds

2016 2017 FY18 FY18

Budget Budget Town Mgr Town Council Notes
Dept:  70  RESERVES As of May 1 June 19, 2017

55-02-70-99 Munic Bldg (3-702-00) 14,000$             Public safety floor replacement; LED lighting; wall heater in garage; ADA door openers

55-10-70-99 City Bus (3-710-00) 5,850$                Toward purchase of "end of life rehab" Bus  (est. FY18)

55-11-70-99 Computer (3-711-00) 14,100$             

55-17-70-99 DPW Equipment (3-717-00) 31,680$             Est. first of five year payment to replace Plow Truck #20

55-19-70-99 Twn Record Reserve (3-719-00) 2,940$                Town Records archival preservation (partial) (est. FY18)

55-25-70-99 Plan & Comm (3-725-00) 15,000$             Eligible for use to enforce Dangerous Building statute

55-27-70-99 Economic Dev (3-727-00) 6,730$                Town Center decorative banner installation

55-33-70-99 Personnel (3-733-00) 25,000$             Unbudgeted personnel costs (FMLA backup; retirement/separation of service payments; etc.)

55-37-70-99 Ambulance (3-737-00) 20,000$             Toward ambulance purchase (est. FY26)

55-41-70-99 Fire Truck (3-741-00) 50,000$             Toward fire engine purchase (est. FY23)

55-45-70-99 Fire Building (3-745-00) 2,361$                Fire garage door exhaust linkage repair (est. FY18)

55-47-70-99 Fire Camera (3-747-00) 10,000$             Thermal imaging camera (est. FY18)

55-53-70-99 Police Cruiser (3-753-00) 27,000$             Toward police cruiser purchase (est. FY18)

55-61-70-99 Roads/Streets (3-761-00) 67,000$             

55-67-70-99 Rec Area Res (3-767-00) 10,000$             Toward add'l parking for Pool site

55-68-70-99 Playground (3-768-00) 5,000$                Toward VFW basketball/tennis court rehab

55-71-70-99 Pool Facility (3-771-00) 5,000$                Toward Pool interior painting (est. FY18)

55-73-70-99 Marina (3-773-00) 5,000$                Replacement of floating dock (est. FY18)

55-75-70-99 Bldg/Grounds (3-775-00) 5,280$                Pickup truck for cemetery crew to replace #52

55-77-70-99 SW/Garage (3-777-00) 90,000$             

55-78-70-99 Matching Grant (3-780-00) 40,000$             

RESERVES 330,000$           502,019$           509,756$           451,941$           

Plotter replacement; LCD Projectors (2); Public Safety Server; Town Office Server; Laptops (2); 

Networking equipment; Phone system; Ambulance laptops (2); A/C for network equipment; CCTV 

Surveillance system; Cruiser laptops (3).

Toward Sucker Brook culvert ($50,000); Baker Road ($12,000); install MDOT flashing ped beacon 

($5000)

Toward salt shed replacement; and contingency for "bridge waste" costs if new facility not open on 

time

M:\!Angus files\Budget\FY18 Budget\FY18 Budget workbook 51 of 51 www.hampdenmaine.gov/budget



1 | P a g e  
 

State and Federal Mandates  

 
Statutorily Required Municipal Services in Maine 

 
This list represents a general review of services municipal government is required by law 

to maintain.  It is not intended to be an exhaustive treatment of all relevant State and federal 
law. It does not account for services and obligations required by contract, local mandate, 
charter, ordinance, or those that result from the application of State agency rules, or, in the 
broadest sense, those that may arise from the operation of commercial and public activities.  
However, if a reader is aware of any required municipal services that should be included, 
please feel free to contact us.   

 
Prepared by Michael L. Stultz and the Legal Services Department of Maine Municipal 

Association, Augusta, Maine.  Telephone: 800-452-8786; e-mail: legal@memun.org.  Febru-
ary 23, 2012. 

 
Schools and Education 
 
1) Education.  Implement and administer public education as required by the State.  
  20-A M.R.S.A. § 2; ME Const. Art. VIII § 1 

a. Duty of school units.  School units must raise funds to support public education, 
and provide primary and secondary education in accordance with the purposes, 
policies, goals and objective of State law.  20-A M.R.S.A. §§ 4501-4504. 
 

2) No Child Left Behind.  Federally required annual student assessment.  20 U.S.C. Chapter 
70 
 

3) Learning Results.  State-required assessment.  20-A M.R.S.A. §§ 6201-6213. 
 

4) Special Education.  Federally required programs for students with special needs.   
20 U.S.C. Chapter 33 

 
Roads and Public Works 
 
1) Must maintain public roads.  Must keep town ways maintained so as to be safe and con-

venient for motor vehicle travel.  23 M.R.S.A. § 3651 
 
Sidewalks.  Sidewalks existing within the right-of-way of a town way must be maintained 
against defects. Wells v. Augusta, 135 Me 314(1938) 
 
Road obstructions.  Must remove loose obstructions, shrubbery and bushes (not planted for 
ornamentation or profit) that pose any road safety problem.  23 M.R.S.A. § 2702 

  



2 | P a g e  
 

 Snow and ice.  Must remove snow and ice in the town way within a reasonable period of 
time; this includes removal from state-aid highways.  23 M.R.S.A. § 1003 

 
Private water supplies.  Must prevent damage to private water supplies as a result of con-
struction, reconstruction or maintenance of public highways.  23 M.R.S.A. § 3659 
 

2) Drains, ditches and culverts. Municipalities may install, but discretion may become obli-
gation if installation is necessary to maintain road in safe and convenient status.  Once 
established, they must be maintained.  23 M.R.S.A. § 3251; 30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3401-3409 
.  

3) Driveways and culverts.  Municipalities must at owner’s expense install culverts where 
private driveways connect to a town way.  Once installed, municipality must maintain.  23 
M.R.S.A. § 705 
  

4) Highway defects. Must correct defects in the road where there has been twenty-four 
hour notice.  14 M.R.S.A. § 8104-A  

 
5) Public works. A registered professional engineer is required for any public works project 

exceeding a cost of $100,000.00.  32 M.R.S.A. § 1254 
 
6) Roads in compact areas.  Urban compact municipalities must maintain roads within the 

compact area.  23 M.R.S.A. § 754  
 
7) Street excavation.  Municipalities must serve notice upon owners of property abutting a 

street or highway, and upon others, directing water and conduit connections prior to 
paving and repairing.  23 M.R.S.A. §§ 3351-3360-A 

 
Land Use and Environmental Protection  
 
1) Board of appeals. If a municipality establishes a zoning ordinance, it must create a board 

of appeals.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 4353 
 

2) Solid waste disposal. Municipalities must close designated “open landfills” as determined 
by DEP.  Closed municipal landfills require biannual groundwater testing and monitor-
ing.  42 U.S.C. Chapter 82; 38 M.R.S.A.§§ 1310-C-1310-H-1 

 
3) Publication for zoning changes.  A public hearing must be held with notice posted at 

least thirteen days before the hearing, and published twice in a local newspaper. Addi-
tional notice requirements apply for zoning changes affecting industrial, commercial, or 
retail uses. 30-A M.R.S.A. § 4352 

 
4) Recycling. Must meet recycling goals as set by State.  38 M.R.S.A. §§ 2132-2133 

 
 



3 | P a g e  
 

5) Sewers and drains. Where a public drain has been constructed, and a person has paid to 
connect to it, the municipality must maintain the drain.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 3403 
 

6) Shoreland zoning.  Must have and enforce zoning and land use controls for areas within 
250 feet of normal high water line.  38 M.R.S.A. §§ 435-448 

 
7) Site Location of Development Act.  DEP may designate municipalities as a reviewing 

authority.  Once so designated, municipalities must administer permits for projects re-
quiring review under the Act.  38 M.R.S.A. § 489-A 

 
8) Subdivision.  Municipal subdivision review is required.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 4401-4408 
 
9) Waste management.  Municipalities must provide solid waste disposal services for do-

mestic and commercial solid waste generated within the municipality.  38 M.R.S.A. § 
1305.   

 
Septage/sludge.  Each municipality shall provide for the disposal of all refuse, effluent, 
sludge and any other materials from septic tanks and cesspools.  38 M.R.S.A. § 1305 
 
Transfer stations.  For those municipalities having transfer stations, they are required to 
comply with DEP regulations for the operation of transfer stations and solid waste sto-
rage.  38 M.R.S.A.  § 1305; Rules of DEP Chapter 402 
 

10) Wastewater treatment facilities.  Municipalities with wastewater treatment facilities con-
structed in whole or in part with State funding must accept  wastewater from watercraft 
sewage pump-out facilities.  38 M.R.S.A. § 414-B 
 

11) Protection and improvement of waters.  Municipalities must comply with federal law 
concerning pollutant and effluent controls necessary to manage water pollution.  33 
U.S.C. Chapter 26; 38 M.R.S.A., Chapter 3 
 

12) Wharves and fish weirs.  Municipalities must examine and hold public hearings upon any 
application to build or extend any wharf, fish weir or trap in tidewaters within the munic-
ipal border.  38 M.R.S.A. § 1022 

 
Public Safety and Health 
 
1) Animal control. Municipalities must enforce the animal welfare laws.  7 M.R.S.A. §§ 

3941-3950-A 
 

2) Building inspection. Every municipality with greater than 2,000 inhabitants must appoint 
a building inspector (optional for municipalities with fewer than 2,000 inhabitants).  25 
M.R.S.A. § 2351-A. 



4 | P a g e  
 

3) Maine Uniform Building and Energy Code (MUBEC). Required enforcement of MU-
BEC for municipalities with a population in excess of 4,000. 10 M.R.S.A. § 9724 
 

4) Emergency Management. Must prepare and keep a disaster emergency plan. 37-B 
M.R.S.A. §§ 781-786 

 
5) Fire protection.  It is not clear whether fire protection is required under Maine law, but it 

is provided in most municipalities. Certain firefighting training requirements and equip-
ment standards are mandated in State law.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3151-3157; 26 M.R.S.A. §§ 
2101 and 2104 

 
6) Fire Ward/Inspector.  Is mandatory if no organized fire department in the municipality.  

25 M.R.S.A. § 2391  
 
7) Forest fire control and costs.  Municipalities are responsible in the first instance for fight-

ing forest fires and for paying for some of the costs incurred in controlling forest fires.  
12 M.R.S.A. §§ 9201-9206 

 
8)  Harbor Master.  If requested, municipal officers shall appoint a harbor master to oversee 

administration and enforcement of mooring privileges for boats and vessels. 38 M.R.S.A. 
§ 1 

 
Boats and lighters.  Where boats and lighters are used to carry stone, sand or gravel, the 
municipal officers shall appoint an inspector to ensure compliance with requirements for 
marking such boats and lighters.  38 M.R.S.A. § 123 
 

9) Law enforcement and police protection.  Municipalities are not required to provide po-
lice protection.  Where provided, specific costs arise.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 2671-2678 

  
Police officers.  A full-time law enforcement officer must complete basic training  re-
quirements at the Criminal Justice Academy.  25 M.R.S.A. § 2804-C 
 
Lost or stolen property.  Disposal of lost, stolen or unclaimed property. Must keep private 
property in an attempt to locate the owner.  25 M.R.S.A. §§ 3501-3507 
 

10) Occupational health requirements.  Local government must comply with the federal 
OSHA  of 1970 as well as similar State requirements to ensure working conditions rea-
sonably free from health hazards or safety threats.  29 C.F.R. Chapter 17; 26 M.R.S.A. §§ 
561-571 
 

11) Plumbing inspection.  Must appoint a plumbing inspector and ensure plumbing complies 
with State and local regulations.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 4221 

 
 



5 | P a g e  
 

 
12) Port Warden.  By petition, ten or more citizens can request and municipal officers must 

appoint a port warden.  38 M.R.S.A. § 41 
 

13) Public Health. Report, prevent and suppress diseases and conditions dangerous to public 
health.  22 M.R.S.A. § 451 

 
 Health officer.  Must appoint a health officer.  22 M.R.S.A. § 451 
  
14) Subsurface wastewater systems. Municipalities shall serve an order to remedy once re-

ceiving notice of malfunctioning subsurface wastewater disposal systems.  30-A M.R.S.A. 
§ 3428 

 
Licensing and Permitting and Economic Regulations 
 
1) ATV registration.  Municipalities must register ATVs.  12 M.R.S.A. § 13155 

 
2) Alcohol.  Assuming local option approval, municipal officers must act on applications 

for an on-premises liquor license.  28-A M.R.S.A. § 653. 
a. Bottle Clubs.  Municipal officers must act on applications for permission to 

operate a bottle club or to transfer location thereof.  28-A M.R.S.A. § 161-B 
 

3) Automobiles.  The municipal tax collector or other designated individual must collect the 
excise tax.  36 M.R.S.A. § 1487 and 29-A M.R.S.A. § 201 
 

4) Beano and Bingo.  Municipal officers must review applications for permission to operate 
beano and bingo amusements.  17 M.R.S.A. § 313 

 
5) Birth/Marriage/Death recording/certificates.  Municipal clerk must record and issue 

permits for births, marriages and deaths.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2652; 19-A M.R.S.A. §§ 652 
and 654 and 22 M.R.S.A. § 2702 

 
6) Bowling alleys, shooting galleries, pool, and bagatelle and billiard rooms.  Municipalities 

license those wishing to operate bowling alleys, shooting galleries, pool bagatelle and bil-
liards rooms. 8 M.R.S.A. §§ 1-2 

 
7) Building Permits.  A municipal reviewing authority must review and approve all new 

multi-family housing accommodations before occupancy is permitted.  5 M.R.S.A. § 
4582-B  

 
8) Cable TV franchises.  Municipalities must honor existing contracts, are required to issue 

new franchise agreements or to renew same, and they must regulate cable operator’s 
compliance with such agreements.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3008 and 3010 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
9) Closing-out sales/going out of business.  Municipal officers must license.  30-A M.R.S.A. 

§§ 3781-3784 
 

10) Concealed weapons.  Municipalities issue permits.  Unless there is no chief of police, can 
request Chief of State Police to issue permits.  25 M.R.S.A. §§ 2001-A-2006 

 
11) Conversion of seasonal dwelling.  Municipal plumbing inspector must issue permit be-

fore a seasonal dwelling in the shoreland zone can be converted to a year-round or prin-
cipal dwelling.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 4215 

 
12) Dogs and dog kennels.  Municipalities must issue dog licenses and kennel licenses.  7 

M.R.S.A. §§ 3921-3924 and §§ 3931-A-3939-B 
 
13) Driveway entrances.  Municipality must authorize ingress and egress to property inside 

an urban compact municipality on state highways state-aid highways.  23 M.R.S.A. § 704 
 
14) Fishing/hunting/trapping.  Agents for IF&W (municipal clerks usually) must issue per-

mits for fishing, hunting and trapping.  12 M.R.S.A. Chapter 913 
 
15) Games of chance.  Municipal officers must sign application.  17 M.R.S.A. § 1832 
 
16) Innkeeper/tavernkeeper/lodging house. Municipalities must issue permits before in-

nkeepers, tavernkeepers or lodging houses can operate.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3811-3814 and 
3931 

 
17) Junkyards.  Must license and police junkyards and automobile recycling and automobile 

graveyard operations.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 3751-3760 
 
18) Lunch wagons.  Municipalities must issue licenses to any reputable person maintaining a 

vehicle for the sale of food.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 3931 
 
19) Mobile homes and over-limit vehicles.  Municipalities must issue permits before mobile 

homes can be moved over public roads, and before over-limit vehicles can travel on pub-
lic roads.  29-A M.R.S.A. §§ 1001 and 2382 

 
20) Off-track betting.  Municipality must approve off-track facility where pari-mutuel wager-

ing will occur.  8 M.R.S.A. § 275-D(5) 
 
21) Pawnbrokers.  Municipalities must license pawnbrokers.  30-A M.R.S.A. §3961 
 
22) Pinball machines.  Municipalities must license those individuals wishing to keep pinball 

machines for public patronage.  8 M.R.S.A. § 441 
 



7 | P a g e  
 

23) Plumbing.  Municipalities, through the local plumbing inspector, must permit and over-
see plumbing.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 4215 et. seq. 

 
24) Poles and wires.  The municipal officers or their designees must issue permits to those 

wishing to construct telephone, electric, or cable TV wires, gas or oil pipelines, or water, 
sewer or steam conduits, along a public way that is a city street or town way or a state or 
state-aid highway in the compact areas as defined in 23 M.R.S.A. § 754.  35-A M.R.S.A. 
§§ 2501-2522 

 
25) Public exhibitions.  Must license exhibitions of images, pageantry, sleight of hand tricks, 

puppet shows, circus, traveling amusement shows, feats of balancing, wire dancing, per-
sonal agility, dexterity or theatrical performances.  8 M.R.S.A. §§ 501-502 

 
26) Roller skating rinks.  Municipalities must license roller skating rinks.  8 M.R.S.A. §§ 601-

608 
  
27) Snowmobile registration.  Must register snowmobiles. 12 M.R.S.A. § 13104 
 
28) Special amusements.  Must issue permit for live music, dancing or entertainment at busi-

nesses licensed for on-premises consumption of alcohol.  28-A M.R.S.A. § 1054 
 
29) Watercraft.  Must permit anyone wishing to bring into or maintain in the harbor any de-

relict watercraft for salvage, or anyone abandoning any watercraft in the harbor.  38 
M.R.S.A. § 9 

 
30) Wharves, weirs, piers and pilings.  Any person wishing to build or extend any wharf, 

weirs, pier or trap in tidewaters must apply to the municipal officers for a license.  38 
M.R.S.A. § 1022 

 
Administration and General Government 
 
1) Accounts for dog and kennel licenses.  Municipalities must maintain separate accounts for the fees col-

lected for dog and kennel licenses and also for court fines collected by the municipality.  7 M.R.S.A. § 
3945 
 

2) Americans with Disabilities Act. Comprehensive requirements concerning persons with disabilities in 
the areas of employment, public accommodations, state and local government services. 42 U.S.C. Chap-
ter 126; 5 M.R.S.A. §§ 4551-4634; and 25 M.R.S.A. § 2701 

 

3) Assessment and collection of taxes.  Must assess and collect property and excise taxes.  
Requirements contained in Titles 36 and 30-A of the Statutes of Maine 

a. Real property 
b. Personal property taxes 
c. Excise taxes 



8 | P a g e  
 

4) Annual Meeting. Annual meeting required at which moderator, selectmen and school 
committee elected.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2525  
 

5) Annual report. Must publish an annual report including post-audit. 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2801 
 
6) Burying grounds. Must care for ancient burying grounds and veteran’s graves in public burying grounds. 

13 M.R.S.A. § 1101 and 30-A M.R.S.A. § 2901  
 
7) Gifts.  A gift received must be accepted by the municipal legislative body, but gifts of cash to supple-

ment a specific appropriation already made may be accepted by the municipal officers. Conditions on 
gifts must be observed.  30-A M.R.S.A. §§ 5652-5655 

 
8) Elections.  Municipalities have election responsibilities under Title 21-A M.R.S.A. §§ 621-A-633, for fed-

eral, state, school administrative unit, caucus, and county elections. 
 
9) Labor and human resource requirements and issues 

 
Fair Labor Standards Act. Municipalities must adhere to federal and State requirements establishing mini-
mum wages, overtime pay, and to regulations regarding child labor and record keeping.  29 U.S.C. Chap-
ter 8; 26 M.R.S.A. §§ 621-A-636 and §§ 661-672 
   
Family and Medical Leave Act.  Municipalities must guarantee unpaid leave for personal and family reasons.  
29 U.S.C. Chapter 28; 26 M.R.S.A. §§ 843-848  
 
Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Act.  Municipalities cannot discriminate against members 
of the military in hiring and retention practices. 38 U.S.C. Chapter 43, §§ 4301-4333 

i) Sexual harassment training.  26 M.R.S.A. § 807 
ii) Video display terminal education and training.  26 M.R.S.A. § 252 

 

10) Freedom of Access Act. Must provide public access to public records and notice of 
meetings.  1  M.R.S.A. §§ 408 and 409(1) 
 

11) General Assistance.  Municipalities are required to provide assistance in meeting basic 
necessities.  22 M.R.S.A. § 4305 

 
12) Municipal annual solid waste report.  Municipalities must report to DEP any material 

produced by a municipal solid waste processing facility.  38 M.R.S.A. § 1304-C 
 
13) Municipal officials required by Maine law: 

a) Animal Control Officer.  7 M.R.S.A. § 3947 
b) Assessor.  36 M.R.S.A. § 327(3) and 30-AM.R.S.A. § 2526(5) 
c) Board of Appeals (if zoning ordinance enacted).  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2691 
d) Building Inspector.  25 M.R.S.A. § 2351-A 
e) Civil Emergency Preparedness Agency Director. 37-B M.R.S.A. § 782(1) 
f) Clerk.  30-AM.R.S.A. § 2525(2) 
g) Code Enforcement Officer.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 4451 



9 | P a g e  
 

h) Election (Ballot) Clerks.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2528(8) and 21-AM.R.S.A. § 503 
i) Excise Tax Collector.  36 M.R.S.A. § 1487(1) 
j) Fence Viewers (if services requested).  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2953 
k) Fire Inspector.  25 M.R.S.A. § 2391 
l) Fire Chief.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 3153 
m) Forest Fire Warden.  12 M.R.S.A. § 8902 
n) GA Fair Hearing Authority.  22 M.R.S.A. § 4322 
o) Harbor Master (if services requested).  38 M.R.S.A. § 1 
p) Health Officer.  22 M.R.S.A. § 451 
q) Local Sealer.  10 M.R.S.A. §§ 2451 and 2452 
r) Equipment necessary to be purchased.  10 M.R.S.A. § 2354 
s) Moderator.  30-A M.R.S.A. §2521(1) 
t) Municipal Officers.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2521 (selectmen or councilors) 
u) Overseers of the Poor.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2526(4) and 22 M.R.S.A. § 4301(12) 
v) Plumbing Inspector.  30-A M.R.S.A. §4221 
w) Registrar of Voters.  21-A M.R.S.A. §101 
x) Road Commissioners.  30-A M.R.S.A. §2526(7) 
y) School committees and boards.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2525(1); 20-A M.R.S.A. § 2302; 20-A M.R.S.A. §§ 

1251, 1471 and 1651 
z) Shellfish Warden. Required if a municipality enacts a shellfish conservation ordinance.  12 M.R.S.A.  
§ 6671(8) 
aa) Tax Collector.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2525(2) 
bb) Treasurer.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 2525(2) 
 

14) National Voter Registration Act.  Processing and registration of voters.  42 U.S.C. Chap-
ter 20; 21-A M.R.S.A. §§ 180-182 

 
15) Post audit of accounts. Arrange annual post audit of town accounts. 30-A M.R.S.A. 

§5823 
 
16) Recycled goods procurement. Review procurement procedures to encourage use of re-

cycled goods, supplies, equipment and materials.  30-A M.R.S.A. §5656(1) 
 
17) Records keeping and preservation.  

 
Denials and approvals.  All denials and all conditional approvals for licenses, certificates, 
approvals or other types of permits must be in writing.  1 M.R.S.A. §407 
 
Employment termination.  Must maintain record of decisions involving dismissal or refusal 
to renew contract of a public official, employee or appointee.  1 M.R.S.A. § 407 
 
Final disciplinary action.  Must maintain records of final employee disciplinary action.  30-A 
M.R.S.A. § 2702(1)(B)(5)  
 
Records preservation.  Local government records must be maintained and stored as required 
by Maine law and as directed by the State Archivist.  5 M.R.S.A. § 95-B  



10 | P a g e  
 

18) Revenue receipts and disbursements.  Municipal treasurer necessary to receive and record 
all revenues and disbursements.  30-A M.R.S.A. § 5603, et. seq. 
 

19) Town equipment. Municipalities are liable for their negligent acts or omissions in its ownership, 
maintenance, or use of its equipment, vehicles and machinery.  14 M.R.S.A. §8104-A 

 
20) Town buildings. Municipalities are generally liable for their negligent acts or omissions in the 

construction, operation, or maintenance of any public buildings.  14 M.R.S.A. §8104-A 

 
 
 




